
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for March 13, 2014 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

 

 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

 

II. Previous Minutes 

Approval of Minutes of the February 4, 11, 21, and March 4, 2014, Special Meetings and 

February 13, 2014, Regular Council Meeting .................................................................................1 

 

III. Persons to Be Heard 

a. Proclamation: Declaring Women’s History Month ...........................................................18 

b. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

IV. Unfinished Business 

None 

 

V. New Business 

a. Resolution No. 2014–11, Accepting Amendment No. 1 to the Alaska Municipal 

Matching Grant Program, Grant No. 50339, From the Alaska Department of 

Environmental Conservation for the Design and Construction of the Monashka 

Pumphouse Replacement ...................................................................................................22 

b. Resolution No. 2014–12, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the High School   

Soccer Team for the Use of Public Property for Its Soccer Clinic Fundraiser ..................34 

c. Authorization of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract for  Preliminary 

Design and Permitting of Snow Dump Storage Yard, Project No. 13-07/5030 ................40 

d. Authorization of ABC Board Restaurant Designation for Aquamarine LLC....................58 

 

VI. Staff Reports 

a. City Manager 

b. City Clerk 

 

VII. Mayor’s Comments 

 

VIII. Council Comments 

 

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

X. Adjournment 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 



7785 

 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:22 p.m. Councilmembers Charles E. Da-

vidson, Terry J. Haines, Gabriel T. Saravia, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were pre-

sent and constituted a quorum. Councilmember Randall C. Bishop was absent. City Manager 

Aimee Kniaziowski and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were also present. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Sam Friedman, Kodiak Daily Mirror, asked the amount of the Fisheries Analyst Contract. 

 

III. AUTHORIZATION OF FISHERIES ANALYST CONTRACT 

 

The City Council and Borough Assembly have worked with a fisheries analyst since 2011 to 

help track and respond to fisheries resource management issues important to the Kodiak area. 

The first analyst resigned in the fall of 2013. The joint fisheries work group issued an RFP for a 

replacement in December and recommended a contract with McCarty and Associates at their 

January 27, 2014, meeting. The Council and Assembly discussed the recommendation to offer 

McCarty and Associates a contract at the joint work session on January 30, 2014, and agreed to 

forward the contract at their respective upcoming meetings. The Assembly is scheduled to au-

thorize the contract at their February 6, 2014, meeting.  

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize the professional services agreement with 

McCarty and Associates for fisheries analyst consulting and related services, effective from Feb-

ruary 7, 2014, through February 6, 2016, in the amount of $30,000 per year, plus authorized ex-

penses for the City’s share of the contract costs, with funds coming from the General Fund 

Legislative professional services account, and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract 

for the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Mayor 

Branson determined Councilmember Whiddon had a conflict; therefore, he abstained. Coun-

cilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

  

Councilmember Haines MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in fa-

vor. Councilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 

 

1



 FEBRUARY 4, 2014  7786 

 

 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 

Minutes Approved:   

2



7787 

 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER   
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. Councilmembers Charles E. Da-

vidson, Randall C. Bishop, Gabriel T. Saravia, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were 

present and constituted a quorum. Councilmember Terry J. Haines was absent. Finance Director 

Mary Munk, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, and Deputy Harbormaster Lon White were also pre-

sent. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

None 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 a. Discussion of Horizon Lines Contract Negotiations 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to enter into executive session to discuss Horizon Lines con-

tract negotiations. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Bishop, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in fa-

vor. Councilmember Haines was absent. The motion passed. 

 

The Council entered into Executive Session at 6:04 p.m. 

 

The regular meeting reconvened at 6:59 p.m. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

  

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Bishop, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in fa-

vor. Councilmember Haines was absent. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 

 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

3



 FEBRUARY 11, 2014  7788 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 

Minutes Approved:   

4



   7789 

 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop, 

Charles E. Davidson, Terry J. Haines, Gabriel T. Saravia, and John B. Whiddon were present and 

constituted a quorum. Councilmember Richard H. Walker arrived at 7:32 p.m. City Manager 

Aimée Kniaziowski, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, and Assistant Clerk Catherine Perkins were al-

so present. 

 

After the Pledge of Allegiance, Salvation Army Sergeant Major Dave Blacketer gave the invoca-

tion. 

 

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES  
 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the January 16 and 21, 2014, Spe-

cial Meetings and January 23, 2014, Regular Council Meeting as presented. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, and Whiddon in fa-

vor. Councilmember Walker was not present. The motion passed. 

 

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

 

a. Proclamation: Teen Dating Violence Awareness and Prevention Month 

 

Councilmember Walker arrived. 

 

Councilmember Davidson read the proclamation, which encourages all citizens of Kodiak to ac-

tively support and participate in the ongoing programs designed to reduce and eventually elimi-

nate teen dating violence. 

 

Sandra Wilkins accepted the proclamation for the Kodiak Women’s Resource and Crisis Center. 

 

b. Public Comments 

 

Lawrence Anderson, Senior Citizens of Kodiak, gave an update on the organization's services and 

accomplishments. He noted there has been an increased rate in home-delivered meals, information 

referrals, and service requests. He said there is a new Kodiak Area Transit (KATS) bus, and the adult 

day program is at full capacity. He said the Senior Center received national accreditation in October 

for the third time, and he encouraged the Council to tour the Senior Center. 

 

Amanda Blott, President of Kodiak High School 4-H Club, spoke in support of a Kodiak coop-

erative extension agent. She said the 4-H Club has helped her and many other students and stated 

a cooperative extension agent would further enhance the program.  

5



 FEBRUARY 13, 2014  7790 

 

 

 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1315, Establishing Supplemental 

Appropriation No. 1 to the Budget for the Fiscal Year Commencing on the First Day of 

July 2013 and Ending on the Thirtieth Day of June 2014 

 

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1315 by title. Supplemental Appropriation No. 1 to the 

FY2014 budget is in the amount of $1,472,180. [Clerk’s Note: Supplemental Appropriation No. 

1 was amended to $1,557,180.] It is customary for the City Council to approve at least one sup-

plemental budget annually to authorize the adjustments of current revenues and expenses. These 

adjustments are for the operating funds, as well as additions to project funds for grant revenues 

received and additional expenditures needed that were not known at the time the original budget 

was adopted.  

 

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to adopt Ordinance No. 1315. 

 

Mayor Branson closed the regular meeting, opened and closed the public hearing when no one 

came forward to testify, and reopened the regular meeting. 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to amend Ordinance No. 1315 by adding $85,000 to General 

Fund expenses for Fire Department overtime, with funds coming from the General Fund fund 

balance and directed the Finance Director to adjust budget totals accordingly. 

 

The roll call on the amendment was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walk-

er, and Whiddon in favor. The amendment passed. 

 

The roll call on the motion as amended was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, 

Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1316, Authorizing a Lease to Afognak Native Corpora-

tion of a 15,000 Square Foot (0.34 Acre) Portion of USS 4947 Located Adjacent to Tract 

D-1B 

 

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1316 by title. The Afognak Native Corporation has ex-

pressed interest in the purchase of City–owned land adjacent to their property on Near Island 

since 2009. Following a series of meetings with City staff starting in 2010, Afognak expressed 

the desire to acquire some or all of the land within USS 4947. At previous work sessions the 

Council expressed a preference to not sell City land until a master land plan was completed. 

Therefore, Afognak requested a lease of the property for the purpose of view shed protection. 

Manager Kniaziowski informed the Council of a discrepancy pertaining to the requested lease 

and recommended the Council postpone the first reading until the issue is resolved. 

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1316 in the first reading and advance to 

second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

6



 FEBRUARY 13, 2014  7791 

 

 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to postpone the vote on the first reading of Ordinance No. 

1316 to a future meeting to be determined by the City Manager. 

 

The roll call vote on the postponement was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, 

Walker, and Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.  

 

b. Resolution No. 2014–08, Approving the City Council’s FY2015 Budget Goals 

 

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–08 by title. The Council reviewed a list of current and 

proposed budget goals at its annual planning meeting on February 1, 2014, that will be used to 

develop the FY2015 budget. The goals are similar to FY2014 with only a few changes that clari-

fy Council’s policy direction. The goals will be used by staff in the development of the FY2015 

City budget. 

 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–08.  

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.  

 

c. Resolution No. 2014–09, Supporting the Reinstatement of a Fulltime Cooperative Ex-

tension Agent From the University of Alaska Fairbanks to Kodiak 

 

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–09 by title. Joe Dinnocenzo, the local manager of the 

Kodiak Soil and Water Conservation District office, has requested that Council adopt a resolu-

tion supporting the reinstatement of a cooperative extension agent in Kodiak. The Borough As-

sembly adopted a similar resolution on January 16. 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–09. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.  

 

d. Resolution No. 2014–10, Authorizing the Borrowing From the Alaska Drinking Water 

Fund of an Aggregate Amount not to Exceed $2,500,000 to Pay for the Construction of 

the Monashka Pumphouse 

 

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–10 by title. City staff began the evaluation to rebuild 

or replace the Monashka Pumphouse in October 2010. The analysis and feasibility study are now 

complete and the design is underway. The City used local funds and has acquired Alaska De-

partment of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) grants and a State of Alaska legislative grant 

for the project. The Alaska Municipal Matching Grant program through ADEC requires a 30 

percent match by the City. Staff submitted an Alaska Drinking Water Fund loan questionnaire 

for this project and is eligible to apply for a loan. One of the requirements of the program re-

quires the City Council to adopt a resolution authorizing the loan application and another author-

izing acceptance of the loan. 

 

7



 FEBRUARY 13, 2014  7792 

 

 

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–10. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.  

 

e. Authorization of an Agreement With Kodiak Electric Association and Horizon Lines of 

Alaska, LLC for Electrical Improvements to the Pier III Replacement Project No. 8024 

 

As the City has moved forward with the Pier III Replacement Project, the need for electrical im-

provements has been discussed at Council Work Sessions on September 24, 2013, and October 

22, 2013. As a result of the discussions, Project Manager Roe Sturgulewski has facilitated a 

“Three Party Agreement” with the City of Kodiak, Horizon Lines, and Kodiak Electric Associa-

tion (KEA). Council action is requested in order to facilitate procurement of the “Flywheels” and 

other long lead time items that KEA needs to purchase to meet the crane commissioning date in 

late 2015. 

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize the Pier III Letter of Agreement with the Kodiak 

Electric Association and Horizon Lines and authorize expenditure of $400,000 from the Cargo 

Fund. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed.  

 

f. Authorization of Amendment to the City Manager’s Contract 

 

The Manager, Mayor, and Council met in executive session on January 23, 2014, to evaluate the 

Manager’s performance and to discuss renewal of the contract, per Sections 2 and 13 of the 

agreement. It is the intent of both parties to extend the contract for another year from April 2014 

through April 2015 under the same terms. 

 

City Manager Kniaziowski thanked the Council for their support and said it is an honor and priv-

ilege to work for them and for the public. 

 

Councilmember Haines MOVED to amend the City Manager’s employment contract, record No. 

210865, by striking April 27, 2014, and inserting April 30, 2015, in Section 2 A. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

g. Advisory Board Appointments 

 

Several advisory board seats expired at the end of December. Volunteers were solicited via 

newspaper advertisements, public service announcements, and City Clerk and department head 

recruitment efforts. Additional recruitment efforts were made in January, and applications have 

been received for appointment to the Building Code Board of Appeals and to the ex-officio seats 

on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. Appointments to these boards are made by the 

Mayor and confirmed by the Council. 

8



 FEBRUARY 13, 2014  7793 

 

 

 

Mayor Branson appointed Ed Mahoney to the regular seat on the Building Code Board of Ap-

peals, with the term ending December 31, 2015, and R. Scott Bonney and Gregg Hacker to regu-

lar seats on the Building Code Board of Appeals, with terms ending December 31, 2016; 

Deborah P. Bitanga to the ex-officio student seat on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, 

with the term ending May 2015; and Andrew Joca, to the ex-officio USCG seat on the Parks and 

Recreation Advisory Board for a three-year term.  

 

Councilmember Haines MOVED to confirm the Mayoral advisory board appointments to the 

Building Code Board of Appeals and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board as stated. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

VI. STAFF REPORTS 

 

a. City Manager 

 

Manager Kniaziowski said she has been preparing for the Juneau Legislative Reception. She re-

ported she and Mayor Branson had a teleconference with the City’s Juneau lobbyist and Unalas-

ka City Manager regarding the State’s proposal to decommission the P/V Wolstad and move the 

P/V Stimson from Unalaska to Kodiak. She said Mayor Branson wrote a letter on behalf of the 

City in opposition to the proposal and said the proposal did not receive much support from the 

subcommittee. She also noted that Representative Austerman is against the plan.  

 

She informed the Council she has been working with the Kodiak Island Borough staff to provide 

jointly owned property as a community garden. 

 

She said the Pier III project is moving along well, and there will be an authorization to pre-

purchase pipe and sheet pile at an upcoming special meeting. She noted that there will be a con-

struction pre-bid meeting February 14, and Roe Sturgulewski will be in town for it. She said the 

construction bid award should be ready by March 13. 

 

She informed the Council of her upcoming travel to Juneau and the AML Winter meeting. 

 

b. City Clerk 

 

City Clerk Marlar informed the public of the next scheduled Council work session and regular 

and special meetings. She also informed the public that the City is transitioning to holding future 

work sessions at the Multipurpose Room at the Kodiak Public Library.  

 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

Mayor Branson thanked advisory board volunteers and said she looks forward to providing train-

ing and a reception for them. She thanked staff for their work on the Horizon Line contracts. She 

commended City Manager Kniaziowski. She wished everyone a happy Valentine’s Day. 

 

9



 FEBRUARY 13, 2014  7794 

 

 

 

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Whiddon thanked Chief Wallace and the Kodiak Police Department for their re-

sponse when he needed their assistance. He said they were professional and compassionate, and 

he is impressed with the work they do. 

 

Councilmember Davidson thanked City Manager Kniaziowski for her service to the City. He en-

couraged the public to drive safely.  

 

Councilmember Saravia gave a fisheries update. He thanked the department heads for their ser-

vice and for attending Council meetings. He said it is a pleasure to work with City Manager 

Kniaziowski. He encouraged the public to drive safely. 

 

Councilmember Haines gave an update on his attendance at the North Pacific Fisheries Man-

agement Council meeting. He spoke about Pollock, the Halibut cap, the Observer Program, and 

the reauthorization of the Magnuson-Stevens Act. He said he is glad there is a Fisheries Analyst 

in place again. 

 

Councilmember Bishop thanked Finance Director Mary Munk and the Finance Department for 

their hard work on the budget. He also thanked City Manager Kniaziowski for her hard work and 

dedication. He reported that he participated in a non-profit fundraiser recently and acknowledged 

nonprofits.  

 

Councilmember Walker thanked City Manager Kniaziowski for her hard work. He also thanked 

City Engineer Glenn Melvin for stepping in for Mark Kozak and gave a special thanks to Fi-

nance Director Munk for her work on the budget. He said he is glad to see the old jail torn down 

and wished everyone a happy Valentine’s Day. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 

None 

 

X.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed 

 

 The meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 

 

 

 

10



 FEBRUARY 13, 2014  7795 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 

Minutes Approved:  

  

11



7796 

 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER   
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 12 p.m. Councilmembers Charles E. Davidson, 

Terry J. Haines, Gabriel T. Saravia, and Richard H. Walker were present and constituted a quor-

um. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop and John B. Whiddon were absent. City Manager 

Aimée Kniaziowski, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson 

were also present. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

None 

 

III. AUTHORIZATION TO PRE-PURCHASE PIPE AND SHEET PILE FOR PIER III 

REPLACEMENT, PROJECT NO. 11-07/8024 

 

The authorization is for the request of procurement contracts between the City and two separate 

vendors, Dominion Pipe and Piling in the amount of $2,888,888.70 and LB Foster Company in 

the amount of $450,837.57 for the provision of certain owner-supplied materials for use in the 

construction of the Pier III replacement project, Project No. 11-07/8024. The owner-supplied 

materials authorized for purchases were done through a competitive bid process, per Kodiak’s 

City Code, Title 3. The total amount for the purchase of owner supplied materials, including 

transportation charges to a storage site in Seattle, is $3,339,726.27.  

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize award of the bid procurement contract for pipe 

piles to Dominion Pipe and Piling in the amount of $2,888,888.70 and a separate procurement 

contract for sheet piles to LB Foster Company in the amount of $450,837.57, with funds coming 

from the Pier III Replacement Project No. 11-07/8024 and authorize the City Manager to execute 

the contracts on behalf of the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Bishop and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

  

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Haines, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Bishop and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 12:04 p.m. 

 

 

12



FEBRUARY 21, 2014  7797 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved: 

13



7796 

 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER   
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 12:01 p.m. Councilmembers Charles E. Da-

vidson, Randall C. Bishop, Gabriel T. Saravia, and Richard H. Walker were present and consti-

tuted a quorum. Councilmembers Terry J. Haines and John B. Whiddon were absent. Finance 

Director Mary Munk, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, Harbormaster Marty Owen, and Deputy Har-

bormaster Lon White were also present. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

None 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 a. Discussion of Horizon Lines Contract Negotiations 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to enter into executive session to discuss Horizon Lines con-

tract negotiations. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Bishop, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

The Council entered into Executive Session at 12:02 p.m. 

 

The regular meeting reconvened at 12:57 p.m. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

  

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Bishop, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 12:58 p.m. 

 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

14



MARCH 4, 2014  7797 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved: 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

17



MARCH 13, 2014 

Agenda Item III. a. Memo Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: March 13, 2014 

Agenda Item: III. a. Proclamation: Women’s History Month 

SUMMARY: This proclamation recognizes the contributions of women to the growth and strength of 

our Nation and urges residents to increase their knowledge and appreciation of the valuable role women 

play in our lives. 

NOTES/ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Proclamation Declaring Women’s History Month 

18



Proclamation 
Declaring Women’s History Month 

WHEREAS, American women of every race, class, age, and ethnic 
background helped found the Nation in countless recorded and unrecorded 
ways; and 

WHEREAS, American women of every race, class, and ethnic 
background have made historic contributions to the growth and strength of 
our Nation in countless recorded and unrecorded ways; and 

WHEREAS, women played and continue to play a critical economic, 
cultural, and social role in every sphere of life by constituting a significant 
portion of the labor force working in and outside the home; and 

WHEREAS, women of every race, class, age, and ethnic background 
served as early leaders in the forefront of every major progressive social 
change movement, not only to secure their own right of suffrage and equal 
opportunity, but also in the Abolitionist movement, the Emancipation 
movement, the Industrial movement, and the Civil rights movement; and 

WHEREAS, despite these contributions, the role of women in history 
has been consistently overlooked and undervalued in the body of American 
history. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pat Branson, do hereby proclaim the month 
of March 2014 as 

Women's History Month 

in Kodiak and urge residents to increase their knowledge and appreciation of 
the valuable role women play in our lives. 

Dated this 13 day of March 2014. 
City of Kodiak 

Pat Branson, Mayor 

19

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

20



NEW BUSINESS 

21



22



MARCH 13, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 2 of 3 

BACKGROUND: The AMMG program is managed by the Alaska DEC. The grant program is 

competitive, and communities across Alaska submit water, sewer, and solid waste projects using a 

questionnaire process. Each project is scored and ranked by DEC, and when the Governor establishes 

the annual program budget, the ranked list of projects that score high enough to be within the funding 

level is published in December of each year. Once the Governor signs the budget, the communities then 

receive their notifications and enter into the standard grant agreements. The grant program provides up 

to a 70 percent reimbursement of eligible costs for a community the size of Kodiak. 

DISCUSSION: Staff submitted questionnaires for this project from 2011 through 2012, but the project 

scored too low to qualify for funding. Because the UV project was so successful in pursuing AMMG 

funding and the project came in on the low end of the construction cost estimate, there were grant funds 

remaining.  After discussion with DEC, the City submitted a request to use some of the remaining grant 

funds for design of the upgrades at Monashka. In December 2012, Council accepted a portion of the 

remaining grant funds in the amount of $420,000 from the UV project for the pumphouse project. 

When the UV project was completely closed out, there was $1,465,534 remaining in grant funds. ADEC 

approved the transfer of these funds from the UV project to the Monashka Pumphouse project. ADEC 

provided the final numbers and approval to submit for the grant increase on November 21, 2013. Staff 

submitted the grant application on November 27, 2013, and received notification in February that the 

additional $1,465,534 was available as an amendment to the original grant. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Adopt Resolution No. 2012–11, which allows the City Manager to sign the AMMG grant offer

and accept the additional $1,465,534 in grant funds. Staff recommends this alternative to allow

the design and construction of the project to begin while reducing the use of local capital funds

to complete the project.

2) Do not adopt the resolution. This is not recommended since the City benefits from the use of

these funds, which keep user rates lower while continuing steps to upgrade the City’s aging and

vulnerable water infrastructure.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: With the critical nature of this facility we cannot risk delaying or not 

replacing the pumphouse at this time. The City cannot support our water systems demands without 

Monashka fully operational at all times. To date we have been able to secure the following funding. The 

FY2014 budget does not reflect all the available funds.  

FY 2011 City Funds $225,000 

FY 2012 No Funds Added 

FY 2013 City Funds $425,000 

FY 2013 AMMG $420,000 Accepted Dec 2012 

Total to date $1,070,000 

FY 2014 State Legislative grant $500,000 Accepted September 

2013 by City Council. 

23



MARCH 13, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 3 of 3 

Being added in the 

budget in first 

supplemental budget 

FY 2014. 

FY 2014 AMMG $1,465,534 This is final transfer of 

AMMG funds from the 

UV project to the 

Monashka Pump House 

FY 2014 Alaska Drinking Water 

Loan 

Up to $2,500,000 

We will use this loan to 

help offset required 

matching funds for the 

AMMG funds. City 

required 30% match 

We have been approved 

to apply for up to $2.5 

million. The application 

has been submitted. 

FY 2015 AMMG Questionnaire $2,495,452 This is within the 

Governor’s budget 

released on Dec 12, 

2013. Award July 2014 

if approved. 

When the Governor published his budget on December 12, 2013, the City’s FY2015 AMMG was in the 

budget. The project scored very well, so if the program funding is kept in place, these funds would be 

available once the Governor signs the budget sometime in June or July 2014.  

LEGAL: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2014–11, accepting 

Amendment No. 1 to the AMMG No. 50339 in the amount of $1,465,534 for the design and construction 

of the Monashka Pumphouse upgrade, Project No. 11-05/7029. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: This is a great opportunity to get access to design and 

construction funds for this important project. I appreciate DEC’s willingness to reassign the remaining 

grant money from the UV project to the Monashka pumphouse and support the staff recommendation 

that Council adopt Resolution No. 2014–11 to accept the additional grant funds and authorize me to 

finalize the grant documents. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2014–11 

Attachment B: DEC Notice of Award, February 13, 2014 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014–11. 

24



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ACCEPTING 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE ALASKA MUNICIPAL MATCHING GRANT PRO-

GRAM, GRANT NO. 50339, FROM THE ALASKA DEAPRTMENT OF ENVIRON-

MENTAL CONSERVATION FOR THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

MONASHKA PUMPHOUSE REPLACEMENT 

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska, Department of Environmental Conservation has appro-

priated additional Municipal Matching Grant funds in the amount of  $1,465,534 toward Grant 

No. 50339 to the City of Kodiak to be applied toward the design and construction of the 

Monashka pumphouse replacement project; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak formally requested the grant and thereby agrees to the 

terms and conditions of the grant and to adhere to any governing State regulations; and   

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak agrees to utilize the grant funds for the design and con-

struction phase of this project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska 

that the City of Kodiak formally accepts Amendment No. 1 to the State of Alaska, Department of 

Environmental Conservation Grant No. 50339 in the amount of $1,465,534, accepts the condi-

tions of the grant agreement, and authorizes the City Manager to execute the necessary grant 

documents on behalf of the City. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted: 

25

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



26

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



27



28



29



30



31



32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

33



34



 

MARCH 13, 2014 

Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 2 of 2 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council approve the high school soccer team’s 

use of the City’s soccer courts to provide a soccer clinic and lessons and offset their travel and other 

expenses by adopting Resolution No. 2014–12.  

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Council routinely authorizes the use of City property for 

fundraising activities, especially activities that benefit high school student athletic groups. The high 

school soccer team is entirely self-supporting and relies on fundraisers to cover travel and other team- 

related expenses. I support the soccer team’s efforts to conduct a soccer clinic to raise money to cover 

their team’s expenses and recommend Council adopt Resolution No. 2014–12. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A: Resolution No. 2014–12 

 Attachment B: Letter from Eric Waltenbaugh, dated March 3, 2014 

 Attachment C: Soccer Clinic Flyer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

 Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014–12. 

35



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–12 

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT TO THE HIGH SCHOOL SOCCER TEAM FOR 

THE USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY FOR ITS SOCCER CLINIC FUNDRAISER 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Kodiak High School Soccer Team (Team) is a self-funded team affiliat-

ed with the Kodiak High School; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Team is sponsoring a soccer clinic for the Kodiak community to raise 

funds for team travel and to purchase soccer equipment; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Team has requested use of the Baranof Park soccer field(s) on March 21 

and 22, 2014, and will charge a fee and/or request donations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Kodiak City Code Section 5.04.010 prohibits business activities on City 

property, and Kodiak City Code Section 5.04.060 requires a permit for community festivities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that a permit be issued, with the permit fee waived, to the Kodiak High School Soccer Team as 

provided in section 5.04.050(b) and (d) of the City Code for use of public property for its 2014 

soccer clinic on the condition that the Team agrees to comply with the stipulations set forth in 

this section and section 5.04.060 of the City Code. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that event sponsors shall coordinate the event with the 

Kodiak Parks and Recreation Director. 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 Adopted:  

 

36

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Date: 3 March 2014 
 
To: City of Kodiak 
 722 Mill Bay Rd 
 Kodiak, AK  99615 
 
From: Eric Waltenbaugh 
 Kodiak High School Soccer Team  
 PO Box 2244 
 Kodiak, AK 99615 
 Phone:  907-299-1055 
 E-Mail:  ewaltenbaugh01@kibsd.org 
 
Re:  Use of Baranof Park Soccer Field 
 
Dear Mayor Branson, 
 
My name is Eric Waltenbaugh and I am the coach for the Kodiak High School Soccer Team 
This program is a growing sport at the high school and currently has a membership of some 
40+ students. The season runs from March through May.  
 
I began coaching willing students 2 years ago during lunch in the gym as there were a core 
group of interested students.  Last year, that group grew, and we raised money to take a co-
ed team to the peninsula to play 3 scrimmage matches.  This year we will have separate 
boys and girls teams.  Several teams have expressed interest in coming to Kodiak to play 
both our boys and girls teams.  In addition, we are planning on making another trip to the 
peninsula to play more matches.  
 
Though the team is affiliated with Kodiak High School we are currently entirely self-funded.  
We raise money entirely through our own efforts including bake sales, garage sales, gift 
wrapping, tamale sales, concessions work, etc. Last year we received some support from the 
Kodiak High School Booster Club to make our trip happen.  Another possible source of 
funding will be to put on a clinic for the greater Kodiak Community for a fee and/or 
donations. 
 
As such I am requesting the use of the Baranof Park Soccer Field for this purpose. The clinic 
will be planned for March 21st and 22nd , 2014. 
 
The team appreciates your consideration of this request and I will be happy to answer any 
questions you may have about this fundraiser. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Eric Waltenbaugh 
Kodiak High School Soccer Team 
Head Coach 
 

37

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 

Youth Soccer Clinic 

Kodiak High School Soccer Club 

March 21st – 22nd, 2014 
4-7 year olds 10:00 am – 11:00am  ($15 for 2 days) 

8-11 year olds 11:15am – 12:30pm ($20 for 2 days) 

12-14 year olds 1:00 am – 3:00pm ($35 for 2 days) 

 

Clinic will be held at Baranof Field weather 

permitting; otherwise we will be at North Star 

Elementary Gym. 

Sign up early and receive a free soccer ball 

while supplies last!   

Cindy Bradley Soccer Clinic Organizer (907) 654-9872   

Contact Cindy Bradley for more information or to reserve your spot today! 

Kodiak High School soccer players will 

train youth in fundamental skill 

development and game play. 

 

 Please bring a water bottle and 

dress appropriately for the 

weather 

 

All proceeds benefit the KHS soccer program 

Soccer balls 

donated by 

Rhino Tire! 

38

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

39



40



 

MARCH 13, 2014 

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

DOWL made a presentation to Council at the January 14, 2014, work session indicating that Site 12 was 

the best alternative for the snow disposal site. 

In April 2013 Council approved initial work with DOWL to use the old rock quarry on Pillar Mountain 

as a disposal site for waste soils. While studying both projects concurrently, it became apparent that Site 

12 could be used for waste soils disposal as well as snow disposal. This approach was discussed with 

DOWL and it was agreed there was no need to continue with the Pillar Mountain project if Site 12 was 

suitable for both waste soils and snow disposal. Staff directed DOWL to stop work on the Pillar 

Mountain project and focus on moving forward with Site 12 to develop a disposal site for both snow and 

waste soils. 

Site 12 can be developed as a fill pad area for snow disposal by using waste soil materials from City 

construction projects. This will reduce the development cost of the snow disposal yard and provide a 

convenient location for contractors working for us to dispose of waste soils from City construction 

projects. 

DEC permitting costs and SWPPP operational costs will be reduced by utilizing one location for the two 

disposals. The size of the area available for snow disposal will increase as the City continues to use the 

site for waste soil disposal from City projects.   

Staff requests Council authorize contract Amendment No. 1 with DOWL to fund Task 1-A 65 percent 

Design, Task 2 Environmental Permitting, and Task 3 Geotechnical Investigation at the identified cost 

of $44,500 and start permitting immediately. This timeframe should allow the City to be ready to use the 

area for disposal of waste soils removed during the Aleutian Homes Phase V Water and Sewer project 

scheduled to be constructed this summer. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Authorize Amendment No. 1 to the DOWL contract for permitting and design of Site 12 as a 

combined site for both snow disposal and waste soils removed from City projects, which is the 

staff recommendation. 

2) Do not authorize the amendment and continue to develop both the soil disposal site and snow 

storage site. This would increase cost of development as well as increased cost of permitting, 

operating, and maintaining two separate sites. This option is not recommended. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Funding for the snow storage site was included in the FY2013 Streets 

Capital Improvement project budget, Preliminary Design of Snow Dump Storage Yard, Project No. 

5030. This funding is now depleted, and we need to amend the contract with DOWL to keep the project 

moving forward. 

 

Funding for Pillar Mountain Reclamation Fill Site, Project No. 13-09/5033, was added at the FY2013 

mid-year supplemental budget. This project has $44,891 available. This project can be placed on hold 

41



 

MARCH 13, 2014 

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

and the needed funds transferred to the Preliminary Design of Snow Dump Storage Yard, Project No. 

5030. 

 

DOWL has prepared a proposal labeled (Attachment A) identifying phases and tasks that allow the 

project to move forward in phases. The proposed fees include Phase 1 services for $44,500 and Phase 2 

services for $33,600. We are requesting Phase 1 funding now and future Phase 2 funding to be included 

in the FY2015 budget. 

 

LEGAL: N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council approve Amendment No. 1 to the 

Preliminary Design and Permitting of Snow Dump Storage Yard, Project No. 13-07/5030 with DOWL 

HKM in the amount of $44,500, with funds coming from the Streets Improvement Capital Fund. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support the staff recommendation that we proceed with the 

permitting and preliminary design for the project. I also support the staff recommendation that we 

combine both the waste soil site and the snow storage site into one project, because it reduces costs and 

provides us with a site that works for both functions. I recommend Council authorize Amendment No. 1 

to the DOWL contract to begin this next phase of work as identified in the memo. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A: DOWL HKM City of Kodiak Snow Disposal Site Proposal for Design and  

    Permitting Services dated January 23, 2014 

 

 Attachment B: Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Professional Services between DOWL HKM 

   and City of Kodiak  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to authorize Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Contract for Preliminary 

Design and Permitting of Snow Dump Storage Yard, Project No. 13-07/5030, with DOWL HKM 

in the amount of $44,500, with funds coming from the Streets Improvement Capital Fund and 

authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

42



Page 1 of 2 

City of Kodiak Amendment No. 1 to Professional Service Agreement 

Snow Dump Storage Yard 13-07/5030 

City of Kodiak 

AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Between 

CITY OF KODIAK 

and 

DOWL HKM 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

Project Name: Snow Dump Storage Yard  

Project No.: 13-07/5030  

Effective Date of Agreement:  February 7, 2013 

The above agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services currently authorized to be performed by the ENGINEER in accordance 

with the agreement and previous amendments, if any, is modified as follows: 

A. The ENGINEER shall perform the Additional Scope of Services set forth in Appendix A, 

which consists of the ENGINEER’s proposal letter dated January 23, 2014. 

TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

A. This AMENDMENT becomes effective when signed on behalf of the CITY. 

B. The ENGINEER shall promptly commence performance of the work described in Appendix 

A and shall complete that performance on or before October 15, 2014 following the schedule 

set forth in Appendix A. 

COMPENSATION 

A. Subject to the ENGINEER’s performance of the Additional Services, the CITY shall pay the 

ENGINEER an additional amount of no more than $44,500.00 as set forth in Appendix A.   

B. Compensation Summary 

a. Original Agreement Amount: $ 67,860.00 

b. Total of Prior Amendments: $ 0.00 

c. This Amendment Amount: $ 44,500.00 

d. Adjusted Agreement Amount: $ 112,360.00 

43

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Page 2 of 2 

City of Kodiak Amendment No. 1 to Professional Service Agreement 

Snow Dump Storage Yard 13-07/5030 

SIGNATURES 

A. The City of Kodiak and ENGINEER herby agree to modify the above referenced Agreement 

as set forth in this Amendment.  All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this or 

previous Amendments remain in effect. 

Appendix A, Additional Scope of Services 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this AGREEMENT on the date shown 

below. 

CITY OF KODIAK DOWL HKM 

 

Aimée Kniaziowski  

City Manager 

 Aaron Christie, P.E. 

Project Manager 

 

 

  

Date  Date 

   

ATTEST  ATTEST 

 

 

  

Debra Marlar 

City Clerk 

 Name 

 

 

 Title 

Date  Date 

   

 

 

44



45

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

57



58



59

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



60



61



62



63


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of the February 4, 11, 21, and March 4, 2014, Special Meetings and February 13, 2014, Regular Council Meeting
	Persons To Be Heard
	a.	Proclamation: Declaring Women’s History Month
	Attachment A


	New Business
	a.	Resolution No. 2014–11, Accepting Amendment No. 1 to the Alaska Municipal Matching Grant Program, Grant No. 50339, From the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation for the Design and Construction of the Monashka Pumphouse Replacement
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	b.	Resolution No. 2014–12, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the High School Soccer Team for the Use of Public Property for Its Soccer Clinic Fundraiser
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	c.	Authorization of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract for  Preliminary Design and Permitting of Snow Dump Storage Yard, Project No. 13-07/5030
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	d.	Authorization of ABC Board Restaurant Designation for Aquamarine LLC
	Attachment A





